IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 89,084

MANUEL VALLE,

Appellant,

٧.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

STEPHEN M. KISSINGER Chief Assistant CCR Florida Bar No. 0979295

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL
COLLATERAL REPRESENTATIVE
Post Office Drawer 5498
Tallahassee, Florida 32314
(904) 487-4376..
COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND THE FACTS

The Circuit Court of the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, Dade County, entered the judgments of conviction and sentence under consideration.

Mr. Valle was charged by indictment dated April 13, 1978, with first degree murder, attempted first degree murder, possession of a firearm by a convicted felon, and grand theft. (R1. 7-10). At his first trial in 1978, Mr. Valle was sentenced to death on the first degree murder charge, a consecutive term of 30 years on the attempted murder, and 15 years on the possession of a firearm charge, and a concurrent 5 year term on the grand theft charge. The sentence of death, 30 years and 15 years were reversed by the Florida Supreme Court Valle v. State, 394 So.2d 1004 (Fla. 1981) [Valle I].

Following a retrial, Mr. Valle was sentenced to death on the murder conviction and to consecutive terms of 30 and 5 years on the other counts (R2. 1045-1057); Valle v. State, 474 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1985) [Valle II]. The Florida Supreme Court affirmed the judgment and sentence, but then remanded for a new sentencing hearing on remand from the United States Supreme Court Valle v. State, 502 So. 2d 1225 (Fla. 1987) [Valle III].

On direct appeal of the resentencing proceeding, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed Mr. Valle's convictions and sentences. Valle v. State, 581 So. 2d 40 (Fla. 1991)(Valle IV). The United States Supreme Court denied certiorari on December 2, 1991 Valle v. Florida, 112 S.Ct., 597 (1991).

Mr. Valle filed his initial Rule 3.850 motion on April 6, 1993. On August 16, 1993, this Court denied the motion without prejudice giving Mr. Valle until December 2, 1993

to refile his post conviction motion. Mr. Valle then filed a timely postconviction personally verified by Mr. Valle. In that motion, Mr. Valle raised twenty claims:

CLAIM I

ACCESS TO THE FILES AND RECORDS PERTAINING TO MR. VALLE'S CASE IN THE POSSESSION OF CERTAIN STATE AGENCIES HAVE BEEN WITHHELD IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLA. STAT., THE DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSES OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, THE EIGHTH AMENDMENT, AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION. MR. VALLE CANNOT PREPARE AN ADEQUATE 3.850 MOTION UNTIL HE HAS RECEIVED PUBLIC RECORDS MATERIALS AND BEEN AFFORDED DUE TIME TO REVIEW THOSE MATERIALS AND AMEND,

CLAIM II

THE TRIAL COURT AND THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT IMPROPERLY DENIED MR. VALLE'S PETITION FOR WRIT OF CORAM NOBIS. NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE REVEALS THAT MR. VALLE WAS PREJUDICED BY IMPROPER JURY AND PROSECUTORIAL CONDUCT.

9

CLAIM III

THE JURY WAS IMPROPERLY INSTRUCTED ON THE COLD, CALCULATED, AND PREMEDITATED AGGRAVATING FACTOR, IN VIOLATION OF ESPINOSA V. FLORIDA, STRINGER V. BLACK, MAYNARD V. CARTWRIGHT, HITCHCOCK V. DUGGER, AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM IV

MR. VALLE WAS DENIED A RELIABLE SENTENCING WHEN HIS JURY WAS IMPROPERLY INSTRUCTED THAT ONE SINGLE ACT SUPPORTED THREE SEPARATE AGGRAVATING FACTORS IN VIOLATION OF ESPINOSA V. FLORIDA, STRINGER V. BLACK, MAYNARD V. CARTWRIGHT, HITCHCOCK V. DUGGER, AND THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM V

FLORIDA'S STATUTE SETTING FORTH THE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES TO BE CONSIDERED IN A CAPITAL CASE IS FACIALLY VAGUE AND OVERBROAD IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. THE FACIAL INVALIDITY OF THE STATUTE WAS NOT CURED IN MR. VALLE'S CASE WHERE THE JURY DID NOT RECEIVE ADEQUATE GUIDANCE. AS A RESULT, MR. VALLE'S SENTENCE OF DEATH IS PREMISED UPON FUNDAMENTAL ERROR.

CLAIM VI

COUNSEL FOR THE STATE ENGAGED IN EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE TRIAL JUDGE DURING THE PENDENCY OF MR. VALLE'S TRIAL. TRIAL COUNSEL KNEW OF THE COMMUNICATIONS AND FAILED TO REMOVE SAID TRIAL JUDGE. TRIAL COUNSEL HAD NO STRATEGIC REASON FOR THIS FAILURE. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT DOING SO. MR. VALLE WAS PREJUDICED THEREBY.

CLAIM VII

THROUGHOUT MR. VALLE'S SENTENCING, THE STATE FILLED, OR ASSISTED IN FILLING, MR. VALLE'S COURTROOM WITH AN OVERWHELMING PRESENCE OF UNIFORMED POLICE OFFICERS. THESE POLICE OFFICERS INTIMIDATED BOTH THE TRIAL JUDGE AND JURY. WERE IT NOT FOR THE STATE'S ACTIONS, THE TRIAL JURY WOULD HAVE RECOMMENDED A LIFE SENTENCE AND THE TRIAL JUDGE WOULD HAVE IMPOSED THE SAME.

CLAIM VIII

MR. VALLE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT HIS RESENTENCING, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS RENDERED IN EFFECTIVE BY THE TRIAL COURT'S AND STATE'S ACTIONS. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE ADDITIONAL MITIGATING EVIDENCE AND FAILED TO ADEQUATELY CHALLENGE THE STATE'S CASE. COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY OBJECT TO EIGHTH AMENDMENT FRROR. COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT, AND AS A RESULT, THE DEATH SENTENCE IS UNRELIABLE.

CLAIM IX

MR. VALLE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DURING VOIR DIRE DURING HIS RESENTENCING, IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. TRIAL COUNSEL WAS RENDERED INEFFECTIVE BY THE TRIAL COURT'S AND STATE'S ACTIONS. COUNSEL INEFFECTIVELY FAILED TO OBJECT TO THE STATE'S DISCRIMINATORY USE OF PEREMPTORY CHALLENGES. TRIAL COUNSEL FAILED TO DISCOVER AND REMOVE PREJUDICED JURORS. THE JURORS' PREJUDICES ADVERSELY AFFECTED THE OUTCOME OF BOTH THE GUILT AND PENALTY PHASES OF MR. VALLE'S TRIAL.

CLAIM X

MR. VALLE'S SENTENCE OF DEATH VIOLATES THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS BECAUSE THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS WERE INCORRECT UNDER FLORIDA LAW AND SHIFTED THE BURDEN TO MR. VALLE TO PROVE THAT DEATH WAS INAPPROPRIATE AND BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT EMPLOYED A PRESUMPTION OF DEATH IN SENTENCING MR. VALLE TO DEATH.

CLAIM XI

MR. VALLE WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS AND EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT, AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND EIGHTH AMENDMENTS, BECAUSE THE MENTAL HEALTH EXPERTS WHO EVALUATED HIM DURING THE TRIAL COURT PROCEEDINGS FAILED TO CONDUCT PROFESSIONALLY COMPETENT AND APPROPRIATE EVALUATIONS, AND BECAUSE DEFENSE COUNSEL FAILED TO RENDER EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE. MR. VALLE'S RIGHTS TO A FAIR, INDIVIDUALIZED, AND RELIABLE CAPITALSENTENCING DETERMINATION WERE DENIED.

CLAIM XII

THE INTRODUCTION OF NON-STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS AND THE STATE'S ARGUMENT UPON NON-STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS RENDERED MR. VALLE'S DEATH SENTENCE FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR AND UNRELIABLE, IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. DEFENSE COUNSEL'S FAILURE TO ARGUE EFFECTIVELY CONSTITUTED DEFICIENT PERFORMANCE.

CLAIM XIII

THE PROSECUTORS' MISCONDUCT DURING THE COURSE OF MR. VALLE'S CASE RENDERED MR. VALLE'S CONVICTION AND DEATH SENTENCE FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR AND UNRELIABLE IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH. AND FOURTEENTH SIXTH. AMENDMENTS. THE STATE PRESENTED UNCHARGED COLLATERAL CRIMES IMPROPER ARGUMENT TO THE JURY. COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT OBJECTING. TRIAL COURT'S ACTIONS DID NOT PERMIT COUNSEL TO BE EFFECTIVE.

CLAIM XIV

MR. VALLE WAS DENIED A RELIABLE SENTENCING IN HIS CAPITAL TRIAL BECAUSE THE SENTENCING JUDGE REFUSED TO FIND THE EXISTENCE OF MITIGATION ESTABLISHED BY THE EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD, CONTRARY TO THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM XV

NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE ESTABLISHES THAT MR. VALLE'S CAPITAL CONVICTION AND SENTENCE ARE CONSTITUTIONALLY UNRELIABLE AND IN VIOLATION OF THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

CLAIM XVI

MR. VALLE WAS DEPRIVED OF HIS RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND EIGHTH AMENDMENTS, BECAUSE THE STATE WITHHELD EVIDENCE WHICH WAS MATERIAL AND EXCULPATORY IN NATURE AND/OR PRESENTED MISLEADING EVIDENCE. SUCH OMISSIONS RENDERED DEFENSE COUNSEL'S REPRESENTATION INEFFECTIVE AND PREVENTED A FULL ADVERSARIAL TESTING.

CLAIM XVII

MR. VALLE WAS DENIED THE EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL PRETRIAL AND AT THE GUILT/INNOCENCE PHASE OF HIS TRIAL. IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY INVESTIGATE AND PREPARE MR. VALLE'S CASE IN CHALLENGE TO THE STATE'S CASE. A FULL ADVERSARIAL TESTING DID NOT OCCUR, THE COURT AND STATE RENDERED COUNSEL INEFFECTIVE. COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT. AND AS Α RESULT. MR. VALLE'S CONVICTIONS AND DEATH SENTENCE ARE UNRFLIABLE.

CLAIM XVIII

MR. VALLE IS INNOCENT OF FIRST DEGREE MURDER AND WAS **DENIED AN** ADVERSARIAL TESTING.

CLAIM XIX

MR. VALLE'S TRIAL OUTCOME WAS MATERIALLY UNRELIABLE DUE TO THE INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL, THE WITHHOLDING OF EXCULPATORY OR IMPEACHMENT MATERIAL, THE NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE, THE IMPROPER RULINGS OF THE TRIAL COURT, OR ALL THE PRECEDING AT MR. VALLE'S TRIAL.

CLAIM XX

MR. VALLE'S TRIAL COURT PROCEEDINGS WERE FRAUGHT WITH PROCEDURAL AND SUBSTANTIVE ERRORS, WHICH CANNOT BE HARMLESS WHEN VIEWED AS A WHOLE SINCE THE COMBINATION OF ERRORS DEPRIVED HIM OF THE FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL GUARANTEED UNDER THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.

The State filed its response, asserting that Claims II, III, IV, VI, VII, X, XII, XIII, XIV, XVIII, and XX either were, or could have been addressed on direct appeal; that Claims II, VI, VIII, IX, XI, XV, XVII, XIX were legally insufficient; and, that Mr. Valle should be allowed neither to complete his Chapter 119 civil suits against agencies outside of the jurisdiction of the trial court, nor to amend his Rule 3.850 motion. A Huff hearing was held on August 26, 1994. Thereafter, the Court summarily denied Mr. Valle's motion in an order prepared by the State. (PC-R. 105). The Court did not attach any portion of the record to his order. Mr. Valle filed a motion for rehearing, which was also summarily denied. This appeal follows.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- 1. Mr. Valle was entitled to an evidentiary hearing on the claims presented to the trial court. The allegations contained in those claims, if proven, would have entitled Mr. Valle to relief. The trial court erred by refusing to accept those allegations as true for the purposes of determining whether an evidentiary hearing was required. Mr. Valle was entitled to an evidentiary hearing to establish that he was not guilty of first degree murder even though the claim contained no facts other than those alleged elsewhere in his motion. The facts alleged elsewhere in his motion established the factual basis for this claim. Moreover, Mr. Valle would have pled this claim with greater specificity had the trial court not forced him to go forward without first allowing him to obtain public records.
- 2. This Court's decision in Hoffman v. State. 613 So. 2d 405 (Fla. 1992) requires the 3.850 court to allow capital defendants a reasonable amount of time to pursue civil actions against state agencies outside of the jurisdiction of the 3.850 court who have refused and/or failed to provide public records. The circuit court erred in refusing to allow Mr. Valle's a reasonable amount of time to pursue his civil actions against the Florida Department of Law Enforcement and the Florida Department of Corrections. The circuit court also erred in refusing to require the Dade County State Attorney's Office to provide Mr. Valle with a list of materials which it claimed to be exempt from Chapter 119 disclosure and the statutory basis for such exemptions. Mr. Valle was entitled to such a list under Fla. Stat 119.07(2)(a). Without such a list, Mr. Valle was denied the right to present argument regarding the validity of exemptions claimed by the State. Jennings v. State, 583 So.2d 316

(Fla. 1991). See also, Huff v. State, 622 So. 2d 982 (Fla. 1993). Mr. Valle should have been allowed to amend his Rule 3.850 motion when all records were received.

- 3. Mr. Valle's claim that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to remove a judge who had engaged in <u>ex parte</u> communications with the prosecution was supported by factual allegations and was not clearly rebutted by the record. He was entitled to present evidence to establish his claim. The trial court improperly denied an evidentiary hearing.
- deprived of the effective assistance of counsel during the penalty phase of his capital trail. Mr. Valle made specific factual allegations that the sentencing judge had engaged in ex parte communications with the State, that he had socialized with State witnesses in the presence of the jury, and that he had kissed the victim's wife in front of the jury, but that trial counsel had failed to object. Mr. Valle also alleged that there was no strategic basis for trial counsel's failure. Mr. Valle also specifically alleged that trial counsel had opened the door for extremely damaging evidence of Mr. Valle's alleged attempted escape from the Florida State Penitentiary by presenting evidence of good prison behavior and that trial counsel had done so due to his ignorance of the law, Mr. Valle specifically alleged that additional mitigating evidence could have been presented to the jury had counsel fully investigated Mr. Valle's case. The fact that counsel may have presented some mitigating evidence does not clearly refute this claim.
- 5. Mr. Valle was entitled to an evidentiary hearing on his claim that trial counsel was ineffective for not effectively objecting to the State filling the courtroom with uniformed officers and other supporters of the State's position and excluding members of counsel's

staff, for the purpose of intimidating the trial judge into imposing a sentence of death and preventing the effective assistance of counsel.

- 6. Mr. Valle was entitled to an evidentiary hearing on whether newly discovered evidence establishes the prejudice prong of Mr. Valle's previously denied claim that prosecutorial and/or juror misconduct entitled Mr. Valle to penalty phase relief. The facts alleged, if true, would entitle Mr. Valle to relief.
- 7. Mr. Valle was entitled to relief on his claim that his jury was improperly instructed on the cold, calculated, and premeditated aggravating factor. Mr. Valle fulfilled the prerequisites to preserve this claim under James v. State, 615 So. 2d 668 (Fla. 1993). A reasonable juror could have found that the alleged murder was not cold, calculated, and premeditated as properly defined.
- 8. Mr. Valle was entitled to relief on his claim that his jury had been improperly instructed on the aggravating factors of the murder was committed to disrupt or hinder the exercise of a governmental function or the enforcement of laws (Fla. Stat. §921.141(5)(g)), the capital felony was committed for the purpose of avoiding or preventing a lawful arrest or effectuating an escape from custody (Fla. Stat. §921.141(5)(e)), and the victim of the capital felony was a law enforcement officer engaged in the performance of his official duties (Fla. Stat. §921.141(5)(j)), based upon the state's theory that Mr. Valle killed Officer Pena to prevent his arrest. Mr. Valle fulfilled the prerequisites to preserve this claim under James v. State, 615 So. 2d 668 (Fla. 1993). A reasonable juror could have given separate weight to each of these duplicative aggravating factors.

- 9. Mr. Valle was entitled to relief on his claim that the facial invalidity of Florida capital sentencing statute was not cured by subsequent narrowing during his capital sentencing.
- 10. Mr. Valle specifically alleged that his trial counsel was ineffective for failing to properly preserve his <u>Slappy</u> and <u>Neil</u> claim. This Court found that the issue was not properly preserved. Mr. Valle was entitled to demonstrate that his trial counsel had no strategic basis for failing to properly preserve this issue and that his failure constituted deficient performance.
- 11. Mr. Valle's sentencing jury was improperly instructed that Mr. Valle bore the burden of demonstrating that evidence in mitigation outweighed evidence in aggravation.

 Mr. Valle fulfilled the prerequisites to preserve this claim under James v. State, 615 So. 2d 668 (Fla. 1993). He is entitled to relief.
- 12. Defense counsel's failure to argue effectively constituted deficient performance allowing the introduction of non-statutory aggravating factors and the State's argument upon non-statutory aggravating factors which rendered Mr. Valle's death sentence fundamentally unfair and unreliable, in violation of the Fifth, Sixth, Eighth, and Fourteenth amendments.
- 13. Mr. Valle specifically alleged that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to object to patently improper argument by the prosecutor. Mr. Valle alleged specific evidence establishing the prejudice prong of this claim. He is entitled to an evidentiary hearing to demonstrate that counsel had no strategic basis for his failure to object and that there was a reasonable possibility that had trial counsel properly objected, the outcome of Mr. Valle's penalty phase would have been different,

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