IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 88,203

MANUEL VALLE,

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

AN APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

FARIBA N. KOMEILY

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0375934 Department of Legal Affairs Rivergate Plaza, Suite 950 444 Brickell Avenue Miami, Florida 33 13 1

CLEPN, SUPPEME COURT By______ Child Daptity Clerk

FILED SID J. WHITE

JUN 17 1997

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

Not only did the defendant not object to the CCP instructions in the trial court on the grounds of unconstitutional vagueness, but, it is clear from the record that the defendant obtained the very instruction that the defendant was seeking, and, in the aftermath of the structuring of that instruction, the defense did not posit <u>any</u> objection to the instruction as finally negotiated and drafted. Moreover, the instruction requested did not contain all of the definitions required in <u>Jackson</u>, <u>sapral</u> c h , the requested instruction was insufficient to satisfy <u>Jackson</u>, and the instant claim is further procedurally barred. <u>See</u>, <u>Street v. State</u>, 636 So. 2d 1297, 1303 (Fla. 1994) (claim of unconstitutionally vague jury instruction held to be not preserved and procedurally barred where the defense requested instructions were incomplete and thus also deficient); <u>Harvey v. Dugger</u>, 656 So. 2d at 1258 (claim of unconstitutionally vague CCP instructions held to be procedurally barred in post-conviction proceedings, where the defense had not requested "legally sufficient alternative instructions.").

Finally, the instant claim is also procedurally barred because no claim of unconstitutionally vague jury instructions was raised on direct appeal of the resentencing. Contrary to the Appellant's claim herein, the only issue raised on direct appeal was the applicability of the CCP factor; there was no mention of the jury instructions on this factor. <u>See</u>, Brief of Appellant, Case No. 72,328, at pp.

92-94. The direct appeal argument was solely limited to the sufficiency of the evidence for finding the CCP factor: "the evidence simply does not support findings [by the trial court] or application of the aggravating circumstances." Direct appeal Brief of Appellant, Case No. 72,328, at **p**. 92. Thus, even if the issue of constitutionality of the jury instructions on CCP is deemed to have been preserved at resentencing, the issue is still procedurally barred for failing to raise same on direct appeal. <u>James, supra: Bush</u>, 682 So. 2d at 88 (post-conviction claim of unconstitutional CCP jury instructions was found to be procedurally barred where, "[0]n appeal, [Bush] only argued that '**[t]he** aggravating circumstances in the Florida Capital Sentencing Statute have been applied in a vague and inconsistent manner,' and that the facts did not support a finding of this [CCP] aggravating circumstance in his case.").

Alternatively, the record in this case clearly reflects that any error in the CCP instructions was harmless beyond a reasonable doubt. <u>Eee. e.g., Aicher, suprar Jones, supra: Bush. Supra.</u>, under any definition of CCP, including the most recent refinements in Jackson, this factor clearly exists in the instant case. After Valle was stopped, since he was driving a stolen car, he walked from the detaining officer, back to the stolen Camaro, where his companion, Felix Ruiz, was waiting. (3R. 4035-38). Valle got some cigarettes, and returned to Officer Pena's car. (3R. 4038). Valle then heard the radio dispatcher respond that the Camaro was registered to Willford Straun. (3R. 4039). Valle returned to the Camaro and told Ruiz that the police would find out that car was stolen and that they would be arrested. (3R. 4039). Valle said that he would have to blast the officer. (3R. 4039).²⁶ Ruiz responded, "Well, we have no choice." (3R. 4039). Valle returned to Pena's car, without any

²⁶ An interpreter, when asked to interpret this part of Valle's confession in the context of the entire confession, stated that the correct translation was, "Felix, he's looking into the car's license tag. I have to waste him, shoot him, do away with him, kill him." (3R. 4103-4).

gun, and Ruiz came over, but was told by Pena to go back to the Camaro. (3R. 4042). After Ruiz returned to the Camaro, Valle went back for another cigarette. (R. 4042-43). Ruiz said that he was going to make a call and he left. (R. 4043). Valle then took the gun from the Camaro, returned to Pena's car and shot Pena once. (R. 4043-45). Valle waited until he was about 3-4 feet away from Pena. (R. 4046). Valle then fired at the second officer and thought he had hit him, before he left the scene.. (3R. 4047). Valle admitted he had shot because he had violated his probation and did not want to be imprisoned, (3R. 4046).

All of the elements of CCP, as now defined in <u>Jackson</u>, clearly were shown to exist. First, the "killing was the product of cool and calm reflection and not an act prompted by emotional frenzy, panic, or a fit or rage." <u>Fackson</u>, i648 Sof 2d at 89d by the conversation which the defendant admitted having with Ruiz, explaining the reason why he had to kill the officer. Second, "the defendant had a careful plan or prearranged design to commit the murder before the fatal incident." <u>Id</u>. This is shown by the actions of the defendant in response to the overheard dispatch report \cdot i.e., returning to the Camaro for the express purpose of obtaining the gun to use in the shooting of the officer. Next, "the defendant exhibited heightened premeditation," <u>Id</u>. The reaction to the dispatch report, the effort to retrieve a weapon for the planned killing, and the communication of the plan to Ruiz, are all indicative of a heightened premeditation which goes above and beyond the premeditation required for first degree murder Lastly, there was no pretense of moral or legal justification. <u>Id</u>.²⁷

²⁷ This Court, in <u>Valle</u> IV, the appeal from the resentencing proceeding, analyzed the claim regarding the sufficiency of evidence as to the CCP factor and found that it was properly found to exist. 581 So. 2d at 48.

The State would additionally note that, regardless of whether the CCP factor would have been found valid pursuant to Jackson, even in the absence of this factor, it is clear that the death sentence would still have been imposed and any error regarding the CCP instruction is still harmless. As summarized in the Statement of Case and Facts, supra, and in this Court's prior opinion, five aggravating factors were found to exist, with three of them being merged into a single factor. The defendant was convicted of a prior violent felony - the attempted murder of Officer Spell, The three merged factors related to the defendant's interference with the duties of a law enforcement officer, the disruption of the exercise of the enforcement of laws, and the effort to effect an escape or prevent an arrest. Not only are the remaining aggravating factors compelling, but, there were no statutory mitigating factors and no nonstatutory mitigating factors. As detailed in the Brief of Appellee from the resentencing appeal, the proffered mitigating evidence was repudiated by the record. Efforts to prove that the defendant would be a model prisoner if given a life sentence were negated by the record of prison discipline for improper conduct, including incidents involving violence and an escape attempt. Evidence of the defendant's family background reflected that he had a close-knit family and was well-provided for. All that the defense could establish was that the defendant's father occasionally disciplined him as a child, some 17 years prior to the commission of the instant crimes, in an effort to induce him to live up to his academic potential and succeed in life. This Court, in the resentencing appeal, agreed that the mitigating evidence was properly evaluated and rejected by the lower court. Valle IV, 581 So. 2d at 48-49. Thus, in the context of a CCP aggravating factor which clearly exists, two other aggravating factors which can not be challenged at this time, and a total absence of mitigating factors, any error with respect to the CCP jury instructions must be deemed harmless beyond a reasonable doubt.

VIII.

THE LOWER COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE CLAIM REGARDING THE ALLEGED TRIPLING OF AG-GRAVATING FACTORS WAS PROCEDURALLY BARRED, AS IT HAD BEEN FULLY ADDRESSED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In Claim IV of the second motion to vacate, Valle argued that the imposition of the death penalty **Was** improper because his sentencing jury was improperly instructed on three aggravating factors based upon a single act. (PCR. 12). This is identical to the claim which Valle raised in the direct appeal from the resentencing, in which he argued that it was improper to instruct the jury on the three aggravating factors, absent a limiting instruction to the jury. **See**, Brief of Appellant, Case No. 72,328, pp. 81-85; Brief of Appellee, Case No. 72,328, pp. 88-90; Valle IV, 581 So. 2d at 47, n. 9. The sentencing judge ultimately merged the three factors, treating them as a single factor in the sentencing order. (3R. **897-908**). This Court held that the "trial judge did not err by not instructing the jury to merge the three factors when making their sentencing recommendation." Id. As this issue has been fully briefed, argued and ruled upon in the direct appeal, it is procedurally barred. <u>See</u>, <u>Cherry v. State</u>, 659 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1995) (defendant could not relitigate, in **post**-conviction motion, issue which was considered and rejected on direct appeal, even though defendant recharacterized the issue); <u>Harvey v. Dugger</u>, 656 So. 2d 1253 (Fla. 1995) (same); <u>Turner v. Dugger</u>, 614 So. 2d 1075 (Fla. 1992).

The Appellant asks this Court to revisit the issue, asserting that <u>Espinosa v. Florida</u>, 505 U.S. 1079, 112 S. Ct. 2926, 120 L. Ed. 2d 854 (1992), constitutes new law compelling reconsideration. First, <u>Espinosa</u> involved ans unconstitutionally vague jury instruction.a t i s s u e herein were not and are not claimed to have been vague. Moreover, this Court, post-<u>Espinosa</u>, has held that while the limiting instructions requested herein are proper pursuant to <u>Castro v. State</u>, 597 So. 2d 259,261 (Fla. **1992**), that holding is "prospective" only. <u>Wuornos v. State</u>, 644 So. 2d 1000, 1006 (Fla. 1994). The failure to give the requested limited instruction at the time of the instant resentencing was thus not error because, "at the time of the trial in this case, this issue was governed by <u>Suarez v. State</u>, 481 so. 2d 1201 (Fla. **1985**), cert. denied, 476 US. 1178, 106 S.Ct. 2908, 90 L.Ed. 2d 984 (**1986**), in which we determined that the failure to instruct a jury on duplicative aggravating factors is not reversible error when the trial court does not give the factors double weight in its sentencing order." <u>Armstrong v. State</u>, 642 So. 2d 730,734 (Fla. 1994); see also. Jackson v. <u>State</u>, 648 So. 2d **85**, **91-92** (Fla. 1994) (failure to give a merger jury instruction, with respect to the three aggravators of disrupting governmental function, avoiding arrest, and victim being a law enforcement, was not reversible error, where the trial judge either merges the factors into one or finds only one of the factors to apply).

The failure to give the requested limiting instruction in the instant case, in accordance with **Suarez**, thus bloes not constitute error. j Moreover, uny error must be deenyed harmless.i n this case was instructed that the "advisory sentence is not to be reached by merely counting up the aggravating and mitigating circumstances. You are required to use your reasoned judgment in determining whether the facts of this case under the aggravating and mitigating circumstances upon which I have instructed you can be satisfied by life imprisonment or require the imposition of a death sentence in light of the totality of the circumstances presented." (3R. 6004). The jury was thus told to give the factors proper weight, not merely to add them up. Furthermore, when the sentencing judge merges such factors into a single factor, this Court has concluded that no reversible error occurs. <u>Valle</u> IV, 581 So. 2d at 47, n. 9; <u>Wuornos, supra</u>: <u>Armstrong, supra</u>; Jackson v. State, supra.

IX.

THE CLAIM THAT FLORIDA'S DEATH PENALTY STATUTE IS UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE AS TO THE AGGRAVATING FACTORS WAS PROPERLY HELD TO BE PROCEDURALLY BARRED.

In Claim V of the Second Motion to Vacate, the defendant asserted that Florida's death penalty statute, **s**. 921.141(5), Florida Statutes, is unconstitutionally vague in its definition of the aggravating factors. (PCR, 16). The defendant did not challenge the constitutionality of section 921.141(5), Florida Statutes, either at trial or on direct **appeal**.²⁸ Nor did he challenge any of the jury instructions regarding the aggravating factors on the ground that the factor and/or the instructions were unconstitutionally vague, In view of the foregoing, the instant claim was properly held to be procedurally barred. <u>See, e.g., Hodges, supra,</u> 619 So. 2d at 273; Jones v. State, 22 Fla. L, Weekly S25 (Fla. Dec. 26, 1996) (where one pretrial motion alleged unconstitutional vagueness of CCP factor, but defendant did not present such argument in trial court, the claim was unpreserved and procedurally **barred**).²⁹

²⁸ While the defendant, prior to the 1981 trial, did file a motion attacking the constitutionality of section 92 1.14 1(5)'s aggravating factors (2R. 39 1-93), that motion did not, in any way attack the constitutionality of the CCP factor, which is the focus of Claim V of the motion to vacate and Argument IX of the instant appeal. See, Brief of Appellant, pp. 40-4 1. Furthermore, while Claim V of the motion to vacate argues that aggravating factors (e), (g) and (j) are unconstitutionally duplicative (PCR. 17), the 1981 motion presented a different argument - that factors (e) and (g) were unconstitutionally vague. (2R. 391-93). More importantly, however, the 1981 motion was not renewed at the 1988 resentencing trial.

²⁹ Similarly, in the absence of any arguments before the court as to the alleged unconstitutional vagueness of the aggravating factors at issue herein, this claim is likewise procedurally barred, Prior to the 1988 resentencing trial, the defense argued that the doubling of aggravating factors (e) and (g) would be improper, not that the factors themselves are unconstitutionally vague. (3R. 1242-54). The defense also argued that the CCP factor violated the ex post factor clause of the Constitution, not that the CCP factor was vague, (3R. 1262-68).

Not only is the instant claim procedurally barred because it was never raised through a proper motion in the trial court proceedings, but, the claim of statutory vagueness is one which could have and should have been raised on direct appeal. <u>See, e.g., Chandler v. Dugger, 634</u> So. 2d 1066, 1069 (Fla. 1994) ("Chandler argues that both the instructions on the heinous, atrocious, or cruel and cold, calculated, and premeditated aggravators and the aggravators themselves are unconstitutionally **Threud**atter argument is procedurally barred because it could have been raised on direct appeal.

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